City of Richardson

City Plan Commission
Agenda Packet

Tuesday, August 19, 2014

To advance to the background material for each item in the
agenda, click on the item title in the agenda or click on
Bookmarks in the tool bar on the left side of your screen.



AGENDA

CITY OF RICHARDSON - CITY PLAN COMMISSION
TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014
7:00 P.M.
CIVIC CENTER - COUNCIL CHAMBERS

411 W. ARAPAHO ROAD

BRIEFING SESSION: 6:00 P.M. Prior to the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission
will meet with staff in the East Conference room, located on the first floor, to receive a briefing on:

A. Review and discuss cross section designs for Belt Line Road/Main Street.
B. Discussion of Regular Agenda items.

C. Staff Report on pending development, zoning permits and planning matters.

MINUTES

1. Approval of minutes of the City Plan Commission regular business meeting of August 5,
2014.

CONSENT ITEMS

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate
consideration.

2. Site, Landscape and Building Elevations Plans — Primrose Day Care (companion to Item
3): A request for approval of a site and landscape plan with building elevations to reflect the
development of a 12,000 square foot, one-story day care center. The 1.68-acre site is located
1100 Jonsson Boulevard, at the southwest corner of Jonsson Boulevard and Tatum Street.
Applicant: Travis Bousquet, The Bousquet Group, representing Lennox Industries. Staff: Israel
Roberts.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

3. Replat — University World Addition (companion to Item 2): Consider and take necessary
action on a request for approval of a replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of the University World Addition
to create two (2) lots. The 2.91-acre site is located at 1100 and 1110 Jonsson Boulevard, at the
southwest corner of Jonsson Boulevard and Tatum Street. Applicant: Travis Bousquet, The
Bousquet Group, representing Lennox Industries. Staff: Israel Roberts.

x/cpc/City Plan Commission/2014/2014-08-19 Agenda Page 1 of 2



4. Zoning File 14-23: Consider and take necessary action on a request for a Special Permit for a
motor vehicle repair shop — minor (auto glass repair and installation) to be located at 610 S.
Sherman Street, west side of Sherman Street, north of Spring Valley Road. The property is
currently zoned 1-M(1) Industrial. Applicant: Sean Queen, representing Richardson Auto
Glass. Staff: Chris Shacklett.

ADJOURN

Accommodation requests for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to
the meeting by contacting Susan Mattison, ADA Coordinator, via phone at 972-744-0908, via
email at ADACoordinator@cor.gov or by appointment at 1621 E. Lookout Drive, Richardson,
Texas 75082.

| hereby certify that the above agenda was posted on the bulletin board at City Hall on or before
5:30 p.m., Friday, August 15, 2014.

Cindy Wilson, Administrative Secretary |

x/cpc/City Plan Commission/2014/2014-08-19 Agenda Page 2 of 2



Briefing
Session C

Development Status Report & Map

City of Richardson, Texas = City Plan Commission = August 19, 2014 Meeting Packet



/=

Development Status Report

City of Richardson, Texas + Development Services Department

Updated: August 14, 2014

#

Name/Location

ZONING/SPECIAL PERMITS

Project Information

Status

la | ZF 14-15 A request for a Special Permit for a restaurant | City Plan Commission
Starbucks Coffee Co. with drive-thru service to be located at 501 W. July 15, 2014
501 W. Belt Line Rd. Belt Line Road. The property is currently zoned | Recommended Approval

C-M Commermal. 'Appllcar?t: Jonathqn Spencer, City Council
representing Sterling Design Associates, LLC. August 4, 2014
Staff: Chris Shacklett. Approved

1b | ZF 14-21 A request for approval of a Special Permit for a | City Plan Commission
Four Seasons Markets | farmers market to be located at 100 S. Central August 5, 2014
100 S. Central Expy. Expressway (southwest corner of Central | Recommended Approval

Expressway and Belt Line Road). The property is City Council
currently zoned PD Planned Development. August 25, 2014
Applicant:  Vincent Hirth, representing Four '
Seasons Market. Staff: Chris Shacklett.

2 ZF 14-19 A request for a Special Permit for an assisted | City Plan Commission
Twin Rivers Assisted living facility and other related care services with August 5, 2014
Living modified development standards to be located on | Recommended Approval
1776 N. Plano Rd. a portion of the lot at 1776 N. Plano Road (east City Council

side of Plano Road, south Campbell Road). The August 25, 2014
property is currently zoned O-M Office. Applicant: '
Travis W. Thompson, representing Twin Rivers

Capital Partners LLC. Staff: Chris Shacklett.

3 ZF 14-22 A request for approval of a Special Permit for a | City Plan Commission
Prometheus Academy home school education resource center to be August 5, 2014
1100 E. Campbell Rd. located at 1100 E. Campbell Road (southeast | Recommended Approval

corner of Campbell Road and Glenville Dr|v_e). City Council
The property is currently zoned 1-M(1) Industrial. August 25, 2014
Applicant: Mike Hope, representing Lonestar ’
Construction Services. Staff: Mohamed Bireima.

4 ZF 14-23 A request for approval of a Special Permit for a | City Plan Commission

Richardson Auto Glass
610 S. Sherman St.

motor vehicle repair shop — minor to be located at
610 S. Sherman Street (west side of Sherman
Street, north of Spring Valley Road). The
property is currently zoned I-M(1) Industrial.
Applicant: Sean Queen, representing Richardson
Auto Glass. Staff: Chris Shacklett.

August 19, 2014

VARIANCES

No current Variance applications.

X:\Publications and Forms\Development Status Report & Map\COR Development Status Report.docx

Page 1 of 3




/=

Development Status Report

City of Richardson, Texas + Development Services Department

# Name/Location Project Information Status
PLAT/CONCEPT/DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVALS
5a | CityLine Apartments Site Plan: Administrative approval of a site plan Staff
1250 State St. for the construction of a four (4) story, 233 unit July 23, 2014
multi-family building with 20,550 square feet of Approved per Bush
retail space. Staff: Israel Roberts. Central Station PD Code
Staff Memo & Plans
5b | CityLine Apartments Elevations: Administrative approval of the Staff
1250 State St. elevations for the construction of a four (4) story, July 31, 2014
233 unit multi-family building with 20,550 square Approved per Bush
feet of retail space. Staff: Israel Roberts. Central Station PD Code
Staff Memo & Plans
6 Villas of Nantucket Preliminary Plat: A request for approval of a | City Plan Commission
NE of Old Campbell Rd. | Preliminary Plat of the Villas of Nantucket. The August 5, 2014
& Nantucket Rd. property is located at the northeast corner of Old Approved
Campbell Road and Nantucket Road and is
zoned PD Planned Development. Applicant:
Harry Purdom, representing HPGC Ventures.
Staff: Israel Roberts.
7a | University World Replat: Consider and take necessary action on | City Plan Commission
Addition a request for approval of a replat of Lot 2, Block 1 August 19, 2014
SW of Jonsson Blvd. & | of the University World Addition to create two (2)
Tatum St. lots. The 2.91-acre site is located at 1100 and
1110 Jonsson Boulevard, at the southwest corner
of Jonsson Boulevard and Tatum Street.
Applicant: Travis Bousquet, The Bousquet
Group, representing Lennox Industries. Staff:
Israel Roberts.
7b | Primrose Day Care Site, Landscape and Building Elevations | City Plan Commission
1100 Jonsson Blvd. Plans: A request for approval of a site and August 19, 2014

landscape plan with building elevations to reflect
the development of a 12,000 square foot, one-
story day care center. The 1.68-acre site is
located 1100 Jonsson Boulevard, at the
southwest corner of Jonsson Boulevard and
Tatum Street. Applicant: Travis Bousquet, The
Bousquet Group, representing Lennox Industries.
Staff: Israel Roberts.

X:\Publications and Forms\Development Status Report & Map\COR Development Status Report.docx

Page 2 of 3



http://cor.net/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=10589
http://cor.net/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=10649

—

Development Status Report

City of Richardson, Texas + Development Services Department

# Name/Location Project Information Status
ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS
8 Mi Cocina — Lennox Revised the site and landscape plans to reflect Staff
Shopping Center the construction of approximately 304 square feet August 7, 2014
1370 W. Campbell Rd. expansion to the existing covered patio on the Approved
south side of the building. New shrubs and Staff Memo & Plans
ground covers will be planted adjacent to the
patio to match the existing plant material.
9 Technology Business Revised the site plan to reflect the installation of Staff
Campus the installation of a 5 high tank adjacent to the August 8, 2014
3321 Essex Dr. east side of the building, which will be screened Approved
from view by a proposed 6 high masonry Staff Memo & Plans
screening wall.
10 | Verizon Antenna Revised the site plan to reflect the installation of Staff
Upgrade installation of three (3) new antennas with three August 12, 2014
2071 N. Central Expy. (3) remote radio head units (RRH) replacing the Approved

existing antennas mounted at height of 67 foot on
the existing 100-foot high monopole on the
subject property.

Staff Memo & Plans

X:\Publications and Forms\Development Status Report & Map\COR Development Status Report.docx

Page 3 of 3



http://cor.net/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=10726
http://cor.net/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=10727
http://cor.net/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=10728

“s\d
. . G(ee

[

U (‘l\e“ Point North
Frankford , @o‘e “\\

Collin' County

President:George'Bush Turnplke LU H W NI L[] g

LI}
‘.
L)

-I.:

na.

North Spring

Dallas County
o | | o f — o
LakejRark

Syrermypark S
%
Jonssd .

- N
l Melrose

University,

DALLAS

) W S R —

Richardson

Coit

m

Cottonwood,

Waterfall

o] —

=24l

l o 21 Apolio
’5’ 3
l
1 Main

!--’ DALLAS

Galaty®,

. —-— II’II

ﬂ"iJ‘
?-IIII

Apollo

! Belt Line,
E Spring-Valley, -

Buckingham
| | | i | o | s Vi

Glenville

GARLAND

Jupiter

Buckingham

(=5

Richland Park

I—FT

PLANO

Fd’u cooggoo=—no
21 O

l Renner Geq;

L] Shiloh

Sharp
i
3
E)
)

%
5

Qaj'l.l'l

GARLAND

Greenfield
North Star,

Undeveloped
Land (Approx. 6%)

Development St

City of Richardson, Texas

atus Map %

Updated: August 14, 2014

Zoning/Special Permit

Starbucks Coffee Co., 501 W. Belt Line Rd.
Four Seasons Markets, 100 S. Central Expy.
Twin Rivers Assisted Living, 1776 N. Plano Rd.
Prometheus Academy, 1100 E. Campbell Rd.
Richardson Auto Glass, 610 S. Sherman St.

Variance
No current Variance requests.

Plat/Concept/Development Plan
5. CityLine Apartments, 1250 State St.
6. Villas of Nantucket, NE of Old Campbell Rd. & Nantucket Rd.
7. Primrose Day Care, 1100 Jonsson Blvd.

Administrative Approval
8. Mi Cocina — Lennox Shopping Center, 1370 W. Campbell Rd.
9. Technology Business Campus, 3321 Essex Dr.
10. Verizon Antenna Upgrade, 2071 N. Central Expy.

PON=2=

1 0.5 0 1 2
N TN ] Miles

/

[ 1 [ adl




Agenda
Item 1

Approval of the minutes of the August 5, 2014
City Plan Commission Meeting

City of Richardson, Texas = City Plan Commission = August 19, 2014 Meeting Packet



CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES — AUGUST 5, 2014

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on August 5, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the Council
Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Eron Linn, Commissioner
Tom Maxwell, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Alternate
Stephen Springs, Alternate

MEMBER ABSENT: Gerald Bright, Vice Chair
Randy Roland, Commissioner
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Michael Spicer, Director — Development Services

Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs. — Planning
Israel Roberts, Development Review Manager

Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner

Mohamed Bireima, Planning Technician

Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports, agenda items. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of July 15, 2014.

Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by
Commissioner Linn. Motion passed 7-0.

CONSENT ITEMS

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and will be
enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless
desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration.

2. Preliminary Plat — Villas of Nantucket: A request for approval of a Preliminary Plat for 15 lots
totaling 2.88-acares for the Villas of Nantucket. The property is located at the northeast corner of
Old Campbell Road and Nantucket Road and is zoned PD Planned Development.

Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

PUBLIC HEARINGS

3. Zoning File 14-19 — Twin Rivers Assisted Living: Consider and take necessary action on a
request for approval of a Special Permit for an assisted living facility and other related care serves
with modified development standards to be located on a portion of the lot at 1776 N. Plano Road,
north of Collins Boulevard, on the east side of Plano Road. The property is currently zoned O-M
Office.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit to develop an assisted living
facility with related care services on 4.9 acres located north of Collins Boulevard, east of Plano
Road and adjacent to the Town North Presbyterian Church. He said the facility would be a one-
story, L-shaped, 63,000 square foot building on the south and east side of the property with a
secondary 4,000 square foot building closer to Plano Road.

Mr. Shacklett presented the concept plan noting that the main building would house 86 units
including a memory care wing located on the northern portion of the building and possibly
additional units located in the secondary building. He also said that the secondary building could
house related care services such as adult day care, rehabilitation services, or a medical office that
would not be affiliated with the assisted living facility.

Mr. Shacklett outlined some of the exceptions requested by the applicant, which included:

e Reduce the City’s required 60-foot sethack of non-residential from residential (lounge areas
in proposed building will be 45-52 feet from residential areas).

e Removing the existing landscape along border with subdivision and replace with wrought
iron fence with brick columns in-lieu-of masonry wall with evergreen shrubs inside of
fence to add to the screening.

e A parking ratio of 0.4 per unit (a ratio recommended by the Institute of Traffic Engineers
(ITE) for assisted living facilities).

e Permit the platting of a flag lot for the main property and a separate plat for the area where
the secondary building would be located, which would also produce a flag lot.

e Flexibility - The option of replacing four of the five light wells with dormers leaving the
large light well over the main entrance as is.

e Flexibility in the use and placement of building materials while still meeting the City’s
masonry requirement (+/- 10 percent difference from black/white elevations).

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting that no correspondence had been received
either in favor or opposed.

Commission Linn asked if the City discourages the platting of flag lots how the church was

allowed to develop the original property. He also wanted further clarification on the proposed uses
for the secondary building.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Mr. Shacklett replied that when the property was originally platted it contained 9.5 acres and the
church chose to construct their buildings on the northwest corner of the property and kept the other
land for future expansion.

Regarding the secondary building, Mr. Shacklett said the existing zoning is an office district, and
the way the special condition was written it could develop as a general office building. If the
Commission was concerned about the use, a special condition could be added to limit the use of the
building for medical or related care services if it was not part of the assisted living facility.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the proposed facility was affiliated with the Twin Rivers Senior
Living facility on Belt Line Road.

Mr. Shacklett replied the same person who developed the first facility would be involved with the
development of the proposed facility.

Chairman Hand asked for clarification of an earlier statement about platting the main facility
separately from the secondary building and creating another flag lot.

Mr. Shacklett explained the main lot would remain a flag lot whether the land where the secondary
building was located was separated or not, but if the Commission was concerned a special
condition could be added to a motion limiting the area to no more than two lots.

Commissioner Hand asked if a flag lot would affect the value of the property and Mr. Chavez said
it would not.

Commissioner DePuy asked if there would be two separate owners if the properties were separately
platted and Mr. Shacklett said there would be two owners.

Commissioner Linn asked why the applicant was requesting in Special Condition 3 to have the
flexibility to construct the main and secondary buildings separately. He also wanted to know if
there was an advantage for the applicant to have the secondary building as part of the Special
Permit, but not be required to build it concurrently.

Mr. Shacklett replied the applicant requested the condition to allow for development flexibility and
it was possible the request had to do with not going having to go through the process again.

Commissioner Linn asked if the applicant subdivided the property, would the rights granted under
the requested Special Permit be conveyed to the new owner. He also wanted to know if the
secondary building would be covered under the permit.

Mr. Shacklett said the Special Permit and conditions would apply to the subject 4.88 acres, but it
would be possible for a new owner to request a flag lot variance, construct a building and the
required parking spaces then leave the rest as green space without going through the zoning
process. He added that the conditions listed in the staff report were meant to make it as clear as
possible what the applicant was requesting.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Chairman Hand pointed out that in most cases developers are not required to construct every
building listed on their plans and asked for further clarification as to why Condition 3 was
requested.

Mr. Shacklett replied it was just a clarification of the applicant’s intent and suggested the applicant
may be able to provide further information.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the smaller property/building was sold off and used for a medical
office, would an easement be included so access to the assisted living facility will not be hampered.

Mr. Shacklett said at the time the property or properties were platted, a mutual access easement
would need to be signed by all property owners, including the church, granting the access as well
as dedicating the fire lanes and utility easements.

Chairman Hand asked for clarification on the note in the exhibit that the “building to be built prior
to adjacent parking”.

Mr. Shacklett replied that City code requires parking lots to be screened and instead of having a
parking lot as the first thing someone would see from Plano Road, it was suggested that the
building should be built prior to or concurrent with the adjacent parking so the building would act
as a screen for the parking lot.

Commissioner Linn asked if there should be a stipulation in the Special Permit that the parking lot
should not be constructed unless the secondary building was built.

Chairman Hand said he just wanted to make sure that the parking lot and the building were built at
the same time and not one without the other.

Mr. Shacklett added that the note was there to make sure the applicant would not build the parking
lot without building the secondary building.

Commissioner Maxwell stated that it was unusual for a note about the order of construction to be
on the exhibit and not part of the conditions for the Special Permit.

Mr. Shacklett said the stipulation about the order of construction could be added as a condition of
the Special Permit during the motion.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the parking for the secondary building was needed for the assisted
living facility to meet the required number of parking spaces.

Mr. Shacklett replied that the assisted living facility has sufficient parking spaces on their concept
plan even without the spaces for the secondary building.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Mr. Travis Thompson, representing Twin Rivers Capital, 1400 Preston Road, Suite 400, Plano,
Texas, said the proposed facility would have a low impact on the adjacent subdivision and church
as well as well as filling the need for an assisted living facility on the east side of the City. He
added that the proposed site would complement the existing Twin Rivers Senior Living facility so
when a resident reaches the point of needing assistance with their daily needs they will have
another quality facility to go to.

Mr. Thompson reviewed the requested variances and the reasoning behind those requests:

Reduction to the City’s required 60-foot setback - the proposed lounge areas will extend off
the back of the building into the 60-foot setback, but these areas will provide an area of
relaxation and operation for the residents and staff outside of their rooms.

Removing the existing landscape along border with subdivision - in meetings with adjacent
homeowners, the majority said they would prefer the proposed wrought iron fence and
shrubs instead of a solid masonry wall.

A parking ratio of 0.4 per unit — although the recommendation is 0.4 spaces per unit, the
site will actually be parked at 0.7 spaces per unit even if the secondary building was platted
as a separate site.

Permit the platting of a flag — because of way the church developed, it left a unique piece of
property and assisted living would be an appropriate use because it does not need the
traffic access from Plano Road that a retail center might and being located behind a church
and in front of a neighborhood will make the use more quiet and tranquil for the residents.
In addition, if the property for the secondary building was sold, an agreement would be
made with new owners to have a common sign.

Flexibility

o Secondary building — requested to make sure everyone was aware of the intent and
to make the secondary building of the highest quality and to insure the usage will be
compatible with the assisted living facility. Also, if all the buildings were built at
one time it may be hard to justify assisted living or memory care units in a
secondary building.

o Masonry requirement — because it is so early in the design process, it is hard to
anticipate the cost of stone versus brick so it may be more cost effective to use one
or the other.

o Elevations (light wells) — dormer may provide more natural light for the lounge
areas as well as providing cost flexibility for the project.

Commissioner DePuy asked if there would be outside patio areas for the residents and where
would those be located. She also wanted to know where the main dining hall would be located.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Mr. Thompson replied the secondary building will most likely have a front porch appearance, and
on the main building there will be rooms that will have patios. He added the commercial kitchen
and dining area will be off the main entrance with views of the outdoor courtyard area.

Commissioner Linn asked if the secondary building was part of the plan that was proposed to the
homeowners association.

Mr. Thompson said that at the July 7™ meeting with the homeowners, the secondary building was
part of the presentation and at the time the contemplated use was for additional memory care, but
there are some memory care only facilities being planned for the general area (not only
Richardson), which prompted us to request the flexibility. Also, if the main building was extended
all the way to Plano Road doing away with the secondary building, it would present a very long
hallway for the residents to navigate.

Commissioner Linn said based on comments from the staff the intended use for the secondary
building would need to be specific within the Special Permit and asked the applicant if that was
something they would be okay with.

Mr. Thompson said yes, and stated they preferred that option to avoid the risk of a business going
in that was not complementary to the assisted living facility. He added that in their applicant
statement they suggested limiting the uses to be medical offices, rehabilitation, assisted living,
memory care or adult day care.

Chairman Hand asked why it was important to allow the secondary building to be carved off from
the rest of the property.

Mr. Thompson replied that it was not their desire to sell the parcel and the only reason they were
requesting the ability was to have as many options as possible for development of the project.

Commissioner Maxwell said that a living screen in conjunction with the wrought iron fence was
preferable, but had concerns over privacy for both the residents and the homeowners.

Mr. Thompson replied they were looking into fences for the individual patio areas for added
privacy, but it was not their intention for the residents to have the sense they were locked in or the
area to have a sterile feeling.

Commissioner Maxwell thought a living screen and wrought iron fence was preferable, and could
understand the requested flexibility for the materials on the elevation, but expressed concerns about
approving those requests without knowing exactly what they would look like.

Mr. Thompson said he understood and the only comment he could make on their behalf was to ask

the Commissioners to look at the Twin Rivers Senior Living development and the quality and
beauty of that facility.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 6



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Commissioner Maxwell asked if the Special Permit was tied to the applicant and staff replied it
was not. He added that if the permit was granted with the listed conditions and if the property was
not developed by the applicant it caused concern about how the future property might develop.

Mr. Thompson replied he would entertain the Special Permit being tied to Twin Rivers Capital.

Commissioner Frederick expressed concern over the flexibility with the stone and brick because of
the plain and unimaginative buildings along Plano Road and the fact she did not want the proposed
facility to have that same look.

Mr. Thompson said it would be to their advantage to add variety to their building without
necessarily having to use all stone and a beautiful secondary building would be the “front porch” to
their entire facility.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the facility will be managed by the Twin Rivers Corporation and
would it be affiliated with the church.

Mr. Thompson replied that the facility would not be affiliated with the church, but the onsite
management team from Twin Rivers Senior Living will play an integral role in the staffing. He
added that the two companies will not be related other than one of the owners of Twin Rivers
Residential will also be an owner of the assisted living facility.

Mr. George Nelson, 1614 Heather Glen Court, Richardson, Texas, said he was in favor of the
proposed development, but wanted to make sure the developer maintains the fence and area
between the homes and the facility.

With no other comments received in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public hearing.

Chairman Hand agreed there was a need for assisted living and senior housing in the City and liked
the proposed development. He added that he thought it was a complementary use being next door
to the church, but had concerns with the prospect of separating the front parcel and creating another
flag lot.

Commissioner Maxwell again expressed concerns over the lack of definition regarding future
subdivision of the land, building the primary and secondary buildings at different times, and
allowing too much flexibility in the elevations. He asked staff what would be the process if the
applicant wanted to sell off the front piece of land.

Mr. Shacklett said that if the application was approved as presented, when the applicant came back
for platting they would not have to ask for a variance because it had already been granted through
the Special Permit process. He added that if the Commission wanted to prevent the separation of
the property into two lots, a condition could be changed to “allow a flag lot as shown on the
exhibit”, or if the Commission wanted to allow the separation of the property into two lots the
condition could be changed to reflect that only the L-shaped lot could be a flag lot.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 7



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Commissioner Linn suggested that before the primary building could receive the Certificate of
Occupancy (CO), the secondary building would have to have permits filed for construction.

Mr. Shacklett asked if the Commission had concerns about developing the secondary office
building as a medical office prior to the assisted living facility being built. He also reminded the
Commission that the base zoning would allow a medical or professional office.

Chairman Hand agreed with Mr. Maxwell that the main building should be built prior to or
concurrently with the secondary building.

Commissioner Springs said he agreed with the comments of Mr. Hand and Mr. Maxwell and asked
the staff if there was a definition of a flag lot in the City’s code.

Mr. Shacklett replied the code states “it is a lot predominantly situated behind another lot and
having access to a street by means of a narrow portion of the lot, generally have a depth greater
than its frontage extending out to the street”.

Commissioner Ferrell asked staff if the Commission restricted the elevation to the ones presented
would the applicant have to come back before the Commission for a revision. He added that he
had concerns with the light wells versus the dormers and wanted to know if the applicant could be
precluded from using one over the other.

Mr. Shacklett said if the elevations were approved as presented by both the Commission and City
Council, then if at the time of the development plan process they want to make a change, the item
would have to come back before the Commission because the elevations would not be in
substantial conformance with the ordinance.

Regarding the light wells versus the dormers, Mr. Shacklett stated if the elevations were approved
as presented and the light wells were removed, the applicant would have to come back before the
Commission.

Commissioner Maxwell stated he felt the special conditions, as written, did not reflect what the
applicant was requesting in the elevations since the staff was only allowing a 10 percent variance.

Mr. Shacklett said in his discussion with the applicant it was staff’s contention a limitation of 10
percent was appropriate so the elevations would be a reasonable facsimile of the elevations
presented to the Commission.

Commissioner Maxwell stated he must have misread the condition and was in support of the 10
percent variance.

Commissioner DePuy expressed support for the 10 percent variance on the elevations to allow for
some flexibility, and she was in agreement with the concerns about the flag lot and was not in favor
of having the front piece sold off. She asked staff what would happen if the secondary building
was never built.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 8



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Mr. Shacklett stated that as the application was presented, it was possible the secondary building
and adjoining parking lot would not be built, which would leave the area in question with only
landscaping.

Regarding light wells versus the dormers, Ms. DePuy said she would be in favor of whatever
would provide the most natural light into the building.

Commissioner Springs stated he did not have a problem with the requested elevations because most
of the elevation would be screened but thought the focus should be on the secondary building
because it fronted on Plano Road.

Commissioner Frederick pointed out that the applicant had presented two styles of dormers and
asked which one would be used.

Mr. Shacklett said that as the conditions were written, it gives the applicant the flexibility to use
either a single or triple pane dormer and would not be tied to the elevations.

Chairman Hand asked if the single dormers shown in Exhibit C1 would be where other dormers
could be used or would those be in lieu of the light wells over the public areas.

Mr. Shacklett replied that the dormers on the back of the building would remain and the proposed
dormers would be placed on the front of the elevation in lieu of the light wells.

Mr. Chavez offered a recommendation to revise the conditions as follows:

e Condition 3 — assisted living facility, the primary building, shall be constructed prior to, or
concurrent with, the secondary building. The associated parking for the secondary building
shall only be constructed concurrently with said building.

e Condition 4 — ornamental light wells located over the resident lounges shown in Exhibit C1
are allowed to be replaced with triple pane dormers.

e Condition 8 — a flag lot shall be permitted to accommodate the development of the subject
site.

Commissioner Linn asked if the change to Condition 8 would prevent the property from being
subdivided. He also wanted to know if a condition needed to be added to restrict the secondary
building to medical office use only, something he would prefer.

Mr. Chavez replied that it would not prevent the property from being subdivided, but the applicant
would have to come back before the Commission to request a variance from the original Special
Permit in order to further divide the property.

Regarding restricting the secondary building, Mr. Chavez said a change would only be needed if

the use was not going to be a medical or healthcare related use and staff could change the condition
to limit the use.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 9



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Commissioner Springs pointed out that the term “triple pane window” had a different meaning
from what Mr. Chavez had implied and referred to the thickness of the glass as opposed to three
separate windows.

Mr. Shacklett suggested that the wording could be “may be allowed to be replaced by dormers as
noted in Exhibit” and staff would provide a new exhibit showing the alternate elevation and listed
as a three-window dormer.

Motion: Commissioner Linn made a motion to recommend approval of ZF 14-19 as presented
with the addition of the revised special conditions presented by staff, and the use of the
secondary building as medical office if not used for affiliated assisted living facility use;
second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.

4. Zoning File 14-21 — Four Seasons Market: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
approval of a Special Permit for a farmers market to be located at 100 S. Central Expressway, west
of the intersection of Central Expressway and Belt Line Road, on the south side of Belt Line Road.
The property is currently zoned PD Planned Development.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for a farmers market that would
be open only on Sundays and located on the northern portion of Heights Shopping Center parking
lot. He added that the applicant would be using pop-up 10x10 canopies with the area that would be
barricaded off both end without affecting the north/south travel lanes.

Mr. Shacklett pointed out the farmers market would primarily be providing food products along
with up to 30 percent non-food items (crafts and art). He added that the applicant currently
operates a farmers market on Saturdays on Campbell Road in front of the North Texas Auto
Museum on Saturdays.

In closing his comments, Mr. Shacklett noted that the staff report contained the City’s policies and
conditions for markets regarding signage, food handling, sampling, etc. He added that staff had
received one letter and a few phone calls in support of the market.

Commissioner Maxwell noted that the special conditions indicated the market would only operate
on Sundays and asked if that was per the applicant’s request.

Mr. Shacklett replied it was per the applicant’s request.
Commissioner DePuy asked if the site was redeveloped how that would impact the market.

Mr. Shacklett said that if the site was substantially changed or the area in the parking lot was
altered, the applicant would have to come back through the zoning process to change the location.

Commissioner Linn asked what would happen if the applicant wanted to expand beyond the
proposed boundaries. He also wanted to know if on-site food preparation would be allowed as well
as a time limit for food trucks.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 10



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the applicant wanted to expand, they would have to come back through
the zoning process to change the Special Permit.

Regarding on-site food preparation, Mr. Shacklett stated that would be forbidden under the City’s
Health Code. In addition, food trucks are only allowed by City Code to be at a location for 15
minutes.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Andrew Laska, 502 Hyde Park, Richardson, Texas, stated he had been helping the applicant
with his application and was in favor of the proposed farmers market. He noted that the applicant
currently operates two farmers markets — one in Fairview, Texas and the other on Campbell Road
in Richardson.

Mr. Laska said most of the vendors will be local farmers and artisans and noted that the proposed
site would be superior to the Campbell Road site because of access, parking and the close
proximity of the adjacent neighborhoods.

Mr. Vincent Herth, Four Seasons Markets, 3206 Cristie Circle, Garland, Texas, that after starting
the Campbell Road market three years ago, he had received requests from neighborhood
representative to look at opening a similar market in the Heights Shopping Center. He noted that a
farmers market would aide in the redevelopment of the area as well as offer a gathering spot for
residents in the area.

Mr. Herth said he was requesting to have the market open on Sunday so that it would not conflict
with the Saturday operation of the Campbell Road market.

Commissioner DePuy asked how the vendors were selected for each market.

Mr. Herth replied that vendors can either contact them via their online web site or by stopping by
one of the existing markets to inquire about participating. He added that once the vendor’s product
is confirmed as self-made and not a resale item, a decision is made as to how many of each product
category will be allowed at the market so there will not be an overabundance of any one type of
vendor.

Chairman Hand asked why the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for Sundays only and
also wanted to know why the market would be next to Belt Line Road as opposed to the middle of
the parking lot which would afford more parking.

Mr. Herth said he did not want to impact the Saturday market and wanted to make sure there were
sufficient vendors to fill all the market stalls. In addition, the placement of the market comes from
past experience and the fact the market would be able to take advantage of the traffic and visibility
along Belt Line Road.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 11



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Chairman Hand asked if the Sunday market was a success would there be a possibility of adding a
Saturday market.

Mr. Herth replied that could be a possibility, but he did not want to adversely impact the Saturday
market on Campbell Road.

Commissioner Linn stated he was in support of the proposal and had seen other farmers markets
have a positive impact on neighborhoods. He also asked the applicant to come back before the
Commission after the market is established to let them know if there was anything the City could
do to help increase customer/consumer awareness.

Mr. Richard Dotson, President of Richardson Heights Neighborhood Association, 733 Nottingham,
Richardson, Texas, said his association was overwhelmingly in favor of the market and suggested
it might be beneficial to have some type of crossing guard to allow residents who walk to the site to
cross the busier roadways safely.

With no other comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public hearing.

Chairman Hand mentioned that he liked the proposal and felt it would be beneficial for
redevelopment in the area. In addition, he thought the City might want to look at some of the
City’s regulations regarding farmers market and food trucks and bring those codes up to date.

Mr. Chavez clarified that food trucks or food vendors would be allowed, but they would have to
seek a special event permit from the City.

Commissioner DePuy asked why the Campbell Road market was operating under a special event
permit and the proposed was required to have a Special Permit.

Mr. Chavez replied the Campbell location was considered to be a special event at the time until we
had a better understanding of the operation aspects of a farmers market, but it still operates under
the policies and conditions set forth in the proposed Special Permit for the subject site.

Motion:  Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-21 as
presented; second by Commissioner Linn. Motion approved 7-0.

5. Zoning File 14-22 — Prometheus Academy: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
approval of a Special Permit for a home school education resource center to be located at 1100 E.
Campbell Road, southeast corner of Campbell Road and Glenville Drive.

Mr. Bireima stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for a home school education
resource center for middle school and high school students on the second floor of a multi-tenant
building. He added that center would help home schooled students with classes that are beyond the
expertise of their parents.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 12



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

August 5, 2014

Mr. Bireima said the use is not listed in the City’s Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO), but
the applicant indicated there building has a low demand for parking and they are only requesting 7
parking spaces at any given time. He added the proposed floor plan showed two classrooms and
two lab spaces that would accommodate at a maximum 30 students who would meet twice per
week.

Commissioner Ferrell asked why the applicant needed a Special Permit.

Mr. Bireima replied an academy was not a listed use in the CZO and any unlisted required a special
permit.

Commissioner Linn asked if the item was approved by both the Commission and the City Council,
and the resource center was to leave the building would the Special Permit stay with the building.

Mr. Bireima said the Special Permit as proposed was tied to the academy and if they were to go out
of business the Special Permit would go away.

Mr. Chavez corrected that statement saying the permit would not go away, but another entity could
not occupy the space under the Special Permit until the City revoked or amended the ordinance
associated with the Special Permit.

There were no other questions for staff and Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Although the applicant declined to make any statement, Commissioner DePuy had a question and
asked her to come forward.

Commissioner DePuy asked if there were any other facilities like this in the area or the country.
She also wanted to know how students and their families are made aware of the facility.

Ms. Deborah Hill, 1100 E. Campbell, Suite 200, Richardson, Texas, replied there were probably
some other Christian co-ops that exist, but they would be the only secular facility in North Texas to
serve the home school community.

Regarding students coming to the facility, Ms. Hill said most students hear of their business
through word of mouth advertising in addition to sending messages out through home school web
sites.

Commissioner DePuy asked to confirm the number of students that would be at the facility.

Ms. Hill replied that 12 students would be the maximum class size and there was always the
possibility of having fewer students but it just depended on the need and the teachers.

No other comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public
hearing.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 13



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
August 5, 2014

Commissioners DePuy and Ferrell stated they thought it would be a good use of the space and
could be a viable resource to help home schooled student transition into public education at the
college level.

Motion: Commissioner Linn made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-22 as
presented; second by Commissioner Springs. Motion approved 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular business
meeting at 9:48 p.m.

Barry Hand, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-08-05 Minutes.doc 14



Agenda
Iltem 2

Site, Landscape and Building Elevations Plans:
Primrose Day Care

City of Richardson, Texas = City Plan Commission = August 19, 2014 Meeting Packet



Agenda
Item 3

Replat:
University World Addition

City of Richardson, Texas = City Plan Commission = August 19, 2014 Meeting Packet



Agenda
Item 4

Zoning File 14-23:
Richardson Auto Glass

City of Richardson, Texas = City Plan Commission = August 19, 2014 Meeting Packet



	Agenda

	C. Development Status Report & Map

	1. Approval of the minutes of the August 5, 2014, City Plan Commission Meeting

	2. Site, Landscape and Building Elevations Plans: Primrose Day Care

	3. Replat: University World Addition

	4. Zoning File 14-23: Richardson Auto Glass




